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“Success Lies In One’s Ability To Learn From Mistakes.” 
Dr. Prem Jagaysi 

Not an April Fools Story 
Andrew Joseph Mitchell, was indicted by a grand jury in Kimble County, Texas on a second-degree forgery charge for allegedly 
signing the names of property owners on settlement checks so he could keep the funds for himself. Mitchell is currently jailed in 
Louisiana after being charged with running a similar scheme I Louisiana. 

Prosecutors in Louisiana accused Mitchell of stealing $268,000 from multiple victims. His adjusting business, Mitchell Adjusting 
International LLC, was located in Clear Lake Shores, Texas, but he solicited clients across the country online, the Texas Department 
of Insurance said in a press release. 

The indictment of Mitchell, who changed his name from Andrew Aga, is significant in that it increases the likelihood that Mr. Mitchell 
may be in custody for the remainder of his life. He will spend the next several years being transported from state to state for criminal 
hearings. 

“The longer I live, the more beautiful life becomes.” — Frank Lloyd Wright 
“Beauty of whatever kind, in its supreme development, invariably excites the sensitive soul to tears.” — Edgar Allan Poe 
“Laugh loudly, laugh often, and most important, laugh at yourself.” – Chelsea Handler  
“War, like most other things, is a science to be acquired and perfected by diligence, by perseverance, by time, and by practice.” —Alexander Hamilton 
“Neither the wisest constitution nor the wisest laws will secure the liberty and happiness of a people whose manners are universally 
corrupt.” —Samuel Adams  
“Enlightened statesmen will not always be at the helm.” —James Madison 
“When life seems hard, the courageous do not lie down and accept defeat; instead, they are all the more determined to struggle for a better future.” – 
Queen Elizabeth II 
“Our greatest glory is not in never failing, but in rising every time we fail.” — Confucius  
“He that would make his own liberty secure, must guard even his enemy from oppression; for if he violates this duty, he establishes a precedent that 
will reach to himself.” —Thomas Paine  
“The same prudence which in private life would forbid our paying our own money for unexplained projects, forbids it in the dispensation of the public 
moneys.” —Thomas Jefferson  
“A man is great if today he is greater than yesterday and tomorrow than today.” — Aaron David Gordon  
“Wish not so much to live long as to live well.” – Benjamin Franklin 
“The virtues of men are of more consequence to society than their abilities; and for this reason, the heart should be cultivated with more assiduity than 
the head.” —Noah Webster  
”Those who say it can’t be done are usually interrupted by others doing it.” – James Baldwin 
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The U.S. Department of Justice, the US States Attorney’s Office for the District of Alaska, describe the criminal acts of fraud and the 
rights of the victims as follows: 

As the victim of a federal fraud crime, you may suffer financial and emotional harm and even medical problems 
relating to your victimization. Fraud crime is a personal violation. Your trust in your own judgment, and your trust in 
others, is often shattered. You may feel a sense of betrayal, especially if the perpetrator is someone you know. You 
may have hesitated to tell family members, friends, or colleagues about your victimization for fear of criticism. If they 
then were exploited by the same fraud, you might feel guilty and suffer a sense of isolation. If you are elderly, disabled, 
or on a fixed income – and you lack opportunities to recover your losses – you may face additional trauma, even the 
loss of your independence. 

You may experience feelings about: 

• Yourself. That old saying, “Hindsight is 20-20,” is never truer than in financial fraud crimes. Many victims believe 
they should have known or recognized what was going on or blame themselves for being too trusting or naive. 

• The fraud criminal for taking financial advantage of you, betraying your trust, and jeopardizing your financial 
independence and security. 

• Your family, friends and colleagues for blaming you, being upset over what they perceive as your lack of judgment 
or withdrawing financial or emotional support. 

• The investigative and prosecutorial phases of the justice process, especially in cases that progress slowly or do not 
result in financial outcomes favorable to you. 

• The news media for failing to warn the public about fraud schemes or for exploiting victims when fraud crimes are 
reported. 

• Consumer protection agencies for failing to protect your interests. 

• Creditors who don’t understand your dire financial circumstances. 

• Community, state and federal agencies if their resources are limited or they do not have the authority to help you. 

Who Are the Victims of Fraud? 
Virtually anyone can fall prey to fraudulent crimes. Con artists do not pass over anyone due to such factors as a person’s age, finances, 
educational level, gender, race, culture, ability, or geographic location. In fact, fraud perpetrators often target certain groups based on 
these factors. 

Why Are Fraud Crimes Under-Reported? 
Although fraud victims are not alone, they often suffer their losses alone and in silence. Shame, guilt, embarrassment, and disbelief are 
among the reasons that only an estimated 15 percent of the nation’s fraud victims report their crimes to law enforcement. Other reasons 
include victims’ doubt about their own judgment, a sense of betrayal, and fears about how their family members, friends, and business 
associates will react. Some victims feel their losses are not large enough to report, do not want to get involved, think law enforcement 
agencies will not take the crime seriously, or think nothing will result from reporting the crime. Many victims feel they only have 
themselves to blame, when in reality, calculating, skilled perpetrators are to blame for these criminal acts. 

Who Commits Fraud Crimes? 
Like their victims, fraud criminals vary educationally, socially, geographically, and financially. Most con artists make a career of their 
criminal activities. Some even join professional organizations to legitimize their schemes and project a respectable front. 

What Are Some Common Types of Fraud? 
The weapon of choice for fraud criminals is not a gun or a knife. Rather, it is most often a telephone, letter, glossy publication, or 
brochure offering free vacations, merchandise, investment opportunities, or services. Not all frauds involve the direct selling of goods 
to consumers. Some frauds target institutions or businesses. Examples include: 

 Telemarketing fraud (telephone solicitation for phony goods or services); 

 Mail fraud; 

 Health care and insurance fraud; 

 Pension and trust fund fraud; 

 Credit card and check fraud (including fraud by impersonation resulting from theft of mail or credit cards); 

 Identify Theft; 

 Fraud related to securities, commodities, and other investments; 

 Bank fraud; 

 Embezzlement; 
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 Pyramid or Ponzi schemes; 

 Advance fee schemes; or 

 Internet fraud. 

What Makes a Case a Federal Matter? 
Fraud crimes can be prosecuted at either the state or federal level, depending on a number of factors: 

 Type of fraud scheme and amount of money stolen; 

 Laws violated (federal, state or both); 

 Method of operation; 

 Use of public services (such as the U.S. Postal Service, Telecommunication systems, and Medicare) that fall under federal or 
state regulation and authority; and 

 Location of the crime (within a state or across state or national borders). 

This is ZIFL’s third installment of the saga of McClenny, Moseley & Associates and its problems with the federal courts in the State of 
Louisiana and what appears to be an effort to profit from what some Magistrate and District judges indicate may be criminal conduct 
to profit from insurance claims relating to hurricane damage to the public of the state of Louisiana. 

March 3, 2023 
Order from the Supreme Court of Louisiana re Richard William Huye III: 

IT IS ORDERED that respondent, Richard William Huye III, Louisiana Bar Roll number 38282, be and he hereby is 
suspended from the practice of law on an interim basis pursuant to Supreme Court Rule XIX, § 19.2, pending further 
orders of this court. Pursuant to Supreme Court Rule XIX, § 26(E), this order is effective immediately. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Office of Disciplinary Counsel may seek the appointment of a trustee(s) to 
protect the interests of respondent’s clients pursuant to the provisions of Supreme Court Rule XIX, § 27, if appropriate.  

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that within thirty days of the date of this order, respondent shall submit to the Office of 
Disciplinary Counsel an Excel spreadsheet (or comparable format) containing a complete listing of the full names, 
addresses, and contact information (including, if available, telephone number(s) and email addresses) of all clients of 
McClenny Moseley and Associates, PLLC in Louisiana associated with Hurricanes Laura, Delta, or Ida. Respondent 
shall also provide the spreadsheet to all judges in Louisiana, state and federal, who are handling the firm’s hurricane 
litigation. (emphasis added) 

Also, see the Order by USDC Judge James D. Cain, Jr. 

IT IS ORDERED that the law firm of McClenny Moseley & Associates PLLC and anyone affiliated with the firm, 
including attorneys R. William Huye III, Claude Favrot Reynaud III, Cameron Sean Snowden, Grant P. Gardiner, John 
Moseley, and James McClenny be SUSPENDED FROM PRACTICE before the United States District Court for the 
Western District of Louisiana for a period of ninety (90) days. At the conclusion of that period the matter will be 
referred to a full panel of the Article III judges of this court for consideration of further discipline, which could include 
permanent suspension from practice in the district. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that none of the above-referenced attorneys or any attorney affiliated with MMA settle 
any claims, handle any settlement funds, or make any disbursements of any kind during the period of suspension.  
Finally,  

IT IS ORDERED that the above-referenced attorneys submit to Deputy Special Master Cade R. Cole a draft letter by 
March 10, 2023, informing their clients in this district of the suspension. The letter shall notify the clients that their 
attorneys have been suspended for ninety days in this district court, with the possibility of the period being extended, 
and that the clients have the option of either retaining new counsel or remaining with MMA. Mr. Cole will then 
disseminate the letter. 

March 8, 2023 
The Louisiana Supreme court has indefinitely suspended the law license of William Huye, the attorney who manages the McClenny 
Moseley & Associates New Orleans office. This, of course, is following in the wake of fraud accusations against the firm for their 
questionable tactics in signing and handling Hurricane Laura and Ida claims. 

The high court approved an interim suspension of the law license after the Office of Disciplinary Counsel reported that Mr. Huye 
“appears to be actively engaged in a pattern of serious and harmful ethical misconduct.” 

In previous weeks, three federal judges have sanctioned MMA and the Louisiana Insurance Commissioner, Jim Donelon, issued a 
cease-and-desist order that instructed MMA to stop violating the state’s insurance laws. These claims and sanctions have concerned 
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many represented by the firm and have been exacerbated by the volume of the cases being handled and the surfacing of errors and 
mistakes in lawsuits already filed. 

Many home and property owners who were affected by Hurricane Laura and/or Ida damage who are currently represented by the 
McClenny Moseley & Associates firm are now seeking a second opinion regarding their cases. Local law firms familiar with the 
intricacies of in-state insurance law are now offering free case reviews for such cases to assist their communities with an awareness of 
the legal options available and how to best proceed with seeking compensation. 

March 13, 2023 

A Petition seeking class action status against McClenny, Moseley & Associates, Velawcity, Apex Roofing & Restoration, Zach Moseley, 
James McClenny and William Huye was filed in the 21st Judicial District Court for the Parish of Tangipahoa, State of Louisiana. seeking 
damages for the unlicensed practice of law, violations of numerous Louisiana Statutes, the Louisiana Rules of Professional Conduct and 
the Texas Deceptive Trade Practices Act. The suit named Plaintiff Louis Carter, III alleged that MMA entered into agreements with 
Velawcity, Apex and others in a “vast scheme involving making illegitimate claims to insurers in the state. 
The 21st Judicial District for the Parish of Tangipahoa, State of Louisiana, by US District Judge Brian K. Abels issued a Temporary 
Restraining Order and rule to show cause, McClenny, Moseley & Associates, Tort Network LLC, Apex Roofing & Restoration, Zach 
Moseley, James McClenny and H. William Huye prohibiting them from disposing of any records, documents, communications related 
to the allegations. All are also restrained, enjoined and prohibited from engaging in the following activities in Louisiana pertaining to 
potential or actual hurricane or storm damage claims, including filing or continuing to prosecute any lawsuit or claim obtained in 
connection with any solicitation done by Velawcity continuing to prosecute any lawsuit or claim obtained in connection with any 
solicitation done by Apex or any other roofing or construction contractor; filing or continuing any lawsuit where MMA does not have a 
signed engagement letter with the named insured; contacting potential clients in person on behalf of MMA and contacting potential 
clients by any means; and finally to preserve MMA may not deplete or expend any fees earned, costs expended or other monies obtained 
with respect to any clients solicited or purportedly represented by any other the defendants. 

March 14, 2023 

A complaint for class action, injunctive Relief and damages was filed in the USDC for the Southern District of Texas, Houston Division 
naming as defendants McClenny, Moseley & Associates, Zach Moseley, James McClenny, Tort Network, LLC, Apex Roofing & 
Restoration LLC. The suit alleged that “Despite the language in the Assignment of Benefits assigning the property owner’s right to make 
a claim against the insurer to Apex, Apex wrongfully conspired with MMA, and its principals, to present the property owner’s claim to 
the insurance company by MMA falsely acting as counsel for the property owners.”  
The suit alleges that the defendants engaged in prohibited Barratry including: 
Defendants’ actions amount to unlawful barratry and solicitation of professional employment, for the purposes of an action for civil 
liability for prohibited barratry as follows:  

1. Knowingly instituting a lawsuit, or a claim to an insurer, that the person has not been authorized to pursue in violation of Penal 
Code §38.12(a)(1);  

2. Soliciting employment, either in person or by telephone, for himself or for another in violation of Penal Code §38.12(a)(2); 
3. Paying, giving, or offering to pay or give a person money or anything of value to solicit employment in violation of Penal Code 

§38.12(a)(4); 
4. Accepting or agreeing to accept money or anything of value to solicit employment in violation of Penal Code §38.12(a)(6); 

e. Knowingly financing the commission of unlawful barratry in violation of Penal Code §38.12(b)(1);  
5. Investing funds, the person knows or believes are intended to further the commission of unlawful barratry in violation of Penal 

Code §38.12(b)(2);  
6. Knowingly accepting employment within the scope of the person’s license, registration, or certification that results from 

unlawful barratry in violation of Penal Code §38.12(b)(3);  
7. Soliciting through in-person contact, or through regulated telephone, social media, or other electronic contact, professional 

employment from a non-client in violation of Rule 7.03(b) of the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State 
Bar of Texas. 

8. Sending, delivering, or transmitting, or knowingly permitting or causing another person to send, deliver, or transmit, a 
communication that involves coercion, duress, overreaching, intimidation, or undue influence in violation of Rule 7.03(c) of 
the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas;  

9. Sending, delivering, or transmitting, or knowingly permitting or causing another person to send, deliver, or transmit, a 
solicitation communication to a prospective client that is not plainly marked or clearly designated an “ADVERTISEMENT” in 
violation of Rule 7.03(d)(2) of the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas; and  

10. Paying, giving, or offering to pay or give anything of value to a person not licensed to practice law for soliciting or referring 
prospective clients for professional employment in violation of Rule 7.03(e) of the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional 
Conduct of the State Bar of Texas. 

In addition to damages the suit seeks a permanent injunction granting the relief prayed for; an award of $10,000 for each person who 
was solicited by the prohibited barratry; attorney’s fees and costs. 

March 16, 2023 

An Order from Chief Magistrate Judge Michael B. North, for the United States District Court Eastern District of Louisiana in the case 
Franatovich v. Allied Trust Insurance Company, Case number 22-2552 c/w 22-4927 that should have put the fear of G-d into the lawyers 
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who worked at MMA. It started with the following: “When ego and greed become lawyers’ guiding principles, we get cases like 
Franatovich versus Allied Trust.” You can read the full 28 page report at https://www.linkedin.com/in/matthewdmonson/recent-
activity/all/  
The Order went on to say: 

In these consolidated cases, the Court and the parties –indeed, our entire legal community – are confronted 
with an unprecedented tableau of misconduct by a Texas-based law firm, assisted in its misdeeds by an 
Alabama-based roofing contractor, and an Arizona-based, modern-day case runner. … 
Thanks to out-of-state opportunists like the lawyers of McClenny, Moseley & Associates and their far-flung agents of 
chaos, the damage was only just beginning. 
Since first appearing in this District less than a year ago, McClenny, Moseley & Associates, PLLC (“MMA”) and its 
attorneys, in particular Zach Moseley (“Moseley”) and R. William Huye, III (“Huye”), have engaged in a pattern of 
misconduct on a scale likely never before seen here. The record in these cases establishes that they have undertaken a 
brazen, multi-faceted campaign to enrich themselves with ill-gotten contingency fees paid to them by unwitting 
insurance companies ostensibly on behalf of named insureds that they and their firm did not represent.  
* * * 
The February 1 hearing was quite a display of attorneys trying to dance on the head of a pin – a 90-minute tour-de-
force of sophistry and paltering by Huye and Moseley, brazenly trying to justify their unprofessional, unethical, and 
untruthful conduct. As distasteful as it all is to relive, relive it we must. We begin with the fateful visit of Apex to 
Plaintiff’s home. 
* * * 
This Conduct Violated Rule 11 
Based upon the record evidence and statements made at both hearings, the Court finds that Huye, Moseley, and MMA 
(owing to its Apex Roofing scheme) failed to conduct a reasonable inquiry under the circumstances prior to filing suit 
in Civil Action No. 22-cv-4927. 
* * * 
The focus of the Court’s Rule 11 analysis in this case is solely on MMA’s inexplicable decision to file a federal lawsuit 
on behalf of Plaintiff knowing at all times they did not represent her and even acknowledging same to Plaintiff’s 
Counsel months before filing that lawsuit.  
This is no difficult exercise, if for no reason other than MMA admitted to the violation. (Rec. doc. 71). It ought to be 
obvious that a lawyer and law firm who file a lawsuit on behalf of a person they know they do not represent commit 
a facial violation of Rule 11. Huye, Mosely, and MMA did that here. 
* * * 
The documents MMA’s counsel produced in response to my February 1 Order prove, not only that Moseley and Huye 
lied to me in open court about the firm’s relationship with Velawcity, but that that relationship violates multiple ethical 
rules and, quite possibly, Louisiana law.  
* * * 
These documents establish to my satisfaction that Moseley lied to me when he stated that MMA did not pay on a per-
client or per-contract basis. And they establish that Huye lied in open court when he stated – twice – that Velawcity 
did not provide MMA leads. The contracts also tend to establish that MMA has, through its relationship with the 
company, violated the Rules of Professional Conduct and, quite possibly, Louisiana law. [The court referenced in a 
footnote the crime of soliciting employment for a legal practitioner.] 
* * * 
These records and responses to my questions in open court establish that both Huye and Moseley lied to the Court in 
responding to direct questions concerning MMA’s relationship with Velawcity. Moreover, the documents and counsel’s 
statements on the record indicate that what these lawyers lied about was their scheme to use an outside non-lawyer to 
directly solicit prospective clients and to obtain written contingency-fee contracts from those persons, at a rate of 
$3,000.00 or $3,500.00 per “pre-screened” client, before the “client” ever spoke with a lawyer associated with MMA, 
much less any lawyer. Such an “arrangement” violates the Rules of Professional Conduct. 
* * * 
This record evidence establishes that MMA has made material misrepresentations more than 850 times to obtain an 
unauthorized fee based on claims made on behalf of persons the firm did not represent. And the firm has admitted and 
provided documents indicating that it settled nine such cases and actually received settlement checks in those cases. 
Many of those checks remain unnegotiated, and counsel is unsure where they even are today. 
Counsel also produced a list of nine such cases MMA had already settled. (Id.). This record evidence establishes that 
MMA has made material misrepresentations more than 850 times to obtain an unauthorized fee based on claims made 
on behalf of persons the firm did not represent. And the firm has admitted and provided documents indicating that it 
settled nine such cases and actually received settlement checks in those cases. Many of those checks remain 
unnegotiated, and counsel is unsure where they even are today. (Rec. doc. 73 at pp. 12-13). More concerning, at least 
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one check appears clearly to have been negotiated by MMA by signing the homeowner’s name without any 
authorization to do so. (Id., rec. docs. 58-9, 69). In fact, when asked by MMA for permission to endorse the check 
after it was negotiated, the homeowner (whom MMA did not represent) refused. (Rec. doc. 69 at pp. 3-4). At the 
March 3, 2023 hearing, when asked about this unauthorized endorsement, counsel for MMA was unable to provide 
any explanation. 
* * * 
MMA has been employing a roofing contractor to “sign … up” cases by inducing homeowners to sign Assignments 
of Benefits, which MMA then uses to misrepresent themselves to multiple insurers (over 850 times) as the 
policyholder’s counsel, when they clearly were not. They have settled cases on that false premise, endorsed at least 
one check without authorization, and cannot today answer for where the money from other settlements went. And, in 
Franatovich, they filed a lawsuit on behalf of one of these homeowners they knew they did not represent.  
* * * 
William Huye, Zach Moseley, and McClenny, Moseley & Associates have been nothing less than a scourge on this 
State and its citizens, the Court, and the Bar. 

The judge ordered financial, and other sanctions, against the lawyers because of his limited powers and indicated – without making a 
referral to a prosecutor – about the crimes indicated by his findings. 

March 16 2023 
McClenny Moseley & Associates now also faces a race discrimination lawsuit filed in Houston federal court by a former paralegal. The 
lawsuit alleges some disturbing statements by name partner Zach Moseley. 

March 17, 2023 
Circuit Court Judge Brian K. Abels in Amite, Louisiana on Monday issued a temporary restraining order that bars McClenny Moseley 
& Associates from spending any of the fees it has earned from clients who were solicited by means that are inconsistent with state law. 
The order also bars MMA and Apex Roofing and Restoration from filing any new lawsuits, acting on any of the lawsuits they have 
already filed and signing on any new clients from websites without proper notice. 
In addition to ordering MMA not to spend any money from client fees for cases that were solicited illegally, the order prohibits MMA 
from: 

 Prosecuting any lawsuit or claim solicited by Velawcity, a marketing firm that MMA promised to pay $13.9 million for 
“prescreened client leads.” 

 Prosecuting any lawsuit or claim solicited by Apex or other restoration contractors. 

 Prosecuting any lawsuits in cases without engagement letters. 

 Operating any website designed to gather clients that does not include a reference to MMA and a statement that it is an 
advertisement for attorney services. 

 Contacting potential clients without indicating at the beginning of the communication that the communication is an 
advertisement for legal services. 

Abels ordered representatives for the law firm and Apex to appear before him on March 23 to show cause why the temporary restraining 
order should not be made permanent. Apex employees allegedly walked door to door in hurricane-damaged neighborhoods to solicit 
business for itself and MMA. Judge Abels’ order, however, also orders Apex to cease filing and prosecuting lawsuits. 
March 21, 2023 
The disappearance of MMA has been reversed and it is back with only Mosely and a few lawyers at https://www.mma-pllc.com/ with a 
staff including Zach Moseley as the founding partner (no McClenny) and adds partners Heather Melaas, Derek Fadner and Sean 
Patterson. 

Class Action Lawsuit filed in USDC, Eastern District of Louisiana, entitled Charmel Sancho & Mike Sancho v. MMA, Civil Case No.: 
2:23-cv-994 for breach of fiduciary duty, breach of contract and legal malpractice. 

March 22, 2023 
Apex Roofing and Restoration, L.L.C. filed suit in the Civil District Court for the Parish of Orleans, State of Louisiana, there docketed 
as case number 2023-02475, Division L Section: 06 vs. Richard William Huye, III described as a Petition for damages for legal 
malpractice. Apex’s allegation that over the past several months when this entire situation was being exposed in the Louisiana federal 
courts, at no time did MMA ever reach out to its “client” Apex and advise what was happening.  

The suit alleged, among other things, that: 

Starting in about 2018, Apex adopted an industry accepted practice of securing “assignments of benefits” (“AOBs”) 
from its customers in Florida who needed storm-related roof repair. Apex’s use of AOBs in Florida, where its 
customers assigned to Apex the right to pursue recovery for the cost of its roofing work, helped enable Apex to 
expeditiously build or repair over 10,000 roofs for its customers. 

* * *  
As part of its engagement with Apex, MMA was to timely review the homeowner’s insurance policies and process the 
assignments of benefits made by Apex’s customers to Apex for roof-related damages.  
* * *  
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MMA erroneously represented that Apex’s claims would be settled in pre-suit mediation programs that the courts 
created to handle storm claims. 
* * *  
Apex was falsely accused of having been “employ[ed]” by MMA to “sign up cases,” having assisted MMA “in its 
misdeeds,” and running a “roofing scheme.” 
* * *  
MMA’s improper decision to proceed against the insurance company of behalf of the individual homeowners instead 
of Apex alone has prevented Apex from receiving most of the funds for the roof construction contracts it has initiated, 
and has lost Apex customers because of delays in securing funding for roofing projects which delayed Apex’s ability 
to perform roof repairs or replacements. 
* * *  
What MMA neglected to tell Magistrate Judge North is that on March 7, 2022 (prior to the signing of the retainer 
letter on behalf of Franatovich), MMA specifically instructed Trish Drummond, a non-lawyer employee of Apex, to 
sign these legal agreements on behalf of the individual homeowners. 
* * *  

Huye breached the standard of care he owed to Apex in the following particulars:  

a) By failing to exercise reasonable competence, diligence and promptness in his representation of Apex;  

b) By failing to obtain Apex’s informed consent as to how Huye would undertake to represent Apex, including but 
not limited to MMA’s issuing letters of representation to insurers and filing legal complaints wherein MMA claimed 
to represent Apex’s customers rather than Apex; (and 8 more charges of malpractice). 

* * *  

The suit also attached as exhibits orders of the various courts charging MMA with wrongful conduct and the transcript of the March 3, 
2023 session before the court and an email from Mary Katherine Smith of MMA asking Apex to put the client’s name on the signed 
contract as “Trish Drummond OBO ‘client name.” 

In that regard, Louisiana Statute RS 14:72 §72 makes it a crime to execute a document to be the act of another who did not authorize 
that act.  

Interestingly, the suit failed to attach an engagement letter or lawyer/client agreement between Apex and MMA. Therefore, if there was 
an agreement between Apex and MMA for legal representation it was not in writing. As Samuel Goldwyn was reported to have said: “A 
verbal contract isn’t worth the paper it’s written on.” Regardless, an oral contract can be proved without a paper contract but lack of 
signed contracts with MMA’s alleged clients was the crux of the court’s annoyance with MMA. 

It seems to me that Apex has concluded that the best defense is a serious offense. Suing Huye for malpractice, even if as a client of 
MMA Apex was done wrong, it will be difficult for it to answer why it violated Louisiana law by signing up clients for MMA and 
signing engagement contracts “on behalf of” the insureds who thought they were only signing an assignment of benefits to Apex without 
first obtaining the written agreement of the homeowner to sign their name to a contract with MMA. 

Louisiana prosecutors, as they review the facts determined by hearings in federal courts, indicate that Apex and others, working with 
MMA, acted as “runners” which activity is a crime in Louisiana. 

And may consider, as pointed out by Chief Magistrate Judge Michael B. North, that Louisiana Revised Statute § 37:219 states: 

Unlawful payments by attorneys; unlawful solicitation of employment for legal practitioners; penalty  

A. It shall be unlawful for any attorney to pay money or give any other thing of value to any person for the purpose 
of obtaining representation of any client. 

B. 

(1) No person, firm, or entity shall solicit employment for a legal practitioner. This Paragraph shall not apply to a 
communication governed by the Louisiana State Bar Articles of Incorporation, Article 16, Rules of Professional 
Conduct, Rule 7.1.  

(2) This Section does not prevent any corporation or voluntary association formed for benevolent or charitable 
purposes and recognized by law from furnishing an attorney at law to give free assistance to persons without means.  

C. 

(1) Whoever violates the provisions of this Section shall be fined not more than ten thousand dollars and imprisoned, 
with or without hard labor, for not less than ninety days nor more than five years.  

(2) For a second and each subsequent violation of the provisions of this Section, the penalty shall be a fine of not 
more than twenty thousand dollars and imprisonment at hard labor for not less than three years and for not more 
than fifteen years without the benefit of parole, probation, or suspension of sentence for the first five years. 

March 28, 2023 
In an extraordinary filing, attorney William Huey has withdrawn as counsel in over 100 cases pending in the Middle District of Louisiana. 

Huye indicates that MMA is associating new counsel to handle the files. It is not up to MMA to associate new counsel. It is up to the 
litigants to find new counsel and not be forced to accept whomever this firm chooses for them.  
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Huye also confirms in footnotes that he is no longer working at the firm. Kind of interesting, since the communication came on MMA 
letterhead. 

The motion, filed in one of many cases attaching notices to about 150 lawyers states: 

R. William Huye, III (LA Bar No. 38282) hereby moves the Court for an order allowing him to withdraw as counsel 
of record for the Plaintiff herein, ANDREA HOOVER (“Plaintiff”), specifically on the grounds that the Louisiana 
Supreme Court issued an Order, which was effective immediately, suspending R. William Huye, III from the practice 
of law on an interim basis, pending further orders of the Louisiana Supreme Court. As such, R. William Huye, III is 
disqualified to act as a lawyer since March 3, 2023 and is withdrawing from this matter, and all matters identified in 
the attached list of cases. Pursuant to Rules of Supreme Court of Louisiana Rule XIX §26(F) … 

Attorney Steve Badger commented on the filing that: 

Huye says he is no longer practicing law at MMA, but he signed the motion and signed letters on MMA letterhead 
advising clients he can be reached at a law firm email address.  

MMA submits the filing from their Louisiana office, but their website doesn’t list a Louisiana office any longer. 

Huey's letter to clients misspells "Mosely" in the client letter.  

 

Barry Zalma, Esq., CFE has published five days a week videos on insurance claims, insurance claims law, insurance fraud and 
insurance coverage matters at https://www.rumble.com/zalma.https://rumble.com/c/c-262921. 

He now limits his practice to service as an insurance consultant specializing in insurance coverage, insurance claims handling, insurance 
bad faith and insurance fraud almost equally for insurers and he practiced law in California for more than 44 years as an insurance 
coverage and claims handling lawyer and more than 55 years in the insurance business. He is available at http://www.zalma.com and 
zalma@zalma.com. 

Mr. Zalma is the first recipient of the first annual Claims Magazine/ACE Legend Award. 

Over the last 55 years Barry Zalma has dedicated his life to insurance, insurance claims and the need to defeat insurance fraud. He has 
created the following library of books and other materials to make it possible for insurers and their claims staff to become insurance 
claims professionals. See the more than 500 videos at https://www.rumble.com/zalma.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Estranged from his wife, Scott Lee Smith shot her for $1M of life insurance in Littleton, Colo. He filed for divorce from Nok just 
11 days before shooting her in the basement of her home. Smith called 911 after shooting Nok in the face, lying she attacked him with 
a butcher knife. Yet he had no visible injuries, nor were there signs of a struggle. All three security cameras — which would’ve shown 
the shooting — were missing. Smith had called his mother after being taken into custody, asking her to recover the cams. Officials also 
found Smith and his father moving belongings from the house into two vehicles after he was released from custody. And inside the 
home, they found a duffel bag that was packed for a move elsewhere. Smith also showed “concerning behavior” in the months before 
shooting Nok. He surveilled her, set odd calendar reminders and obsessed over what would happen to her money once their pending 
divorce was finalized. Nok told family and friends that she was afraid of Smith and was trying to escape him. She allowed him to live 
in the basement of the home while she stayed upstairs. Smith received 30 years in prison. His mother is charged as an accessory, plus 
other crimes. 

Flames roared through the home of Rosalie Grant, burning her two infant sons alive in a life-insurance murder plot. The 
Youngstown, Ohio-area woman was handed the death penalty in 1983, commuted to life with parole eligibility. Grant is up for parole in 
April. Mahoning County Prosecutor Gina DeGenova staunchly opposes the move in a letter to the state parole board. Grant’s release 
would “not further the interest of justice nor be consistent with the welfare or security of society,” DeGenova says. “While Grant has 
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made productive use of her time in prison, none of these factors … change the fact that Grant burned her own babies alive for financial 
gain. She set fire to her sons’ bedroom, closed their bedroom door and walked outside to secure her own safety. She then stood outside 
while the bodies of her own children burned beyond recognition. No circumstances could ever justify the release of Grant back into 
society.” Grant bought $10K of life coverage on her sons — two-year-old Joseph and one-year-old Donovan — less than a month before 
the fatal fire. She sprayed their bedroom with charcoal lighter and set the home ablaze. 

Call it a case of dribbling for dollars. Needing money for a divorce plus attorneys he hired to defend him in a weapons-possession 
case, former NBA player Sebastian Telfair ripped off the league’s health plan to score $358K with kickbacks and false invoices to pay 
for large legal fees. Telfair was a New York City streetball legend — a coveted NBA prospect as a high school player. He was chosen in 
the first round of the 2004 NBA draft by the Portland Trail Blazers. He also played for the Boston Celtics, Minnesota Timberwolves and 
several other teams — though never achieved his lofty potential. Telfair is the latest ex-player convicted for providing false invoices to 
receive kickbacks from others involved in the $4M scheme. Some 18 former players and others are charged, with more than half a dozen 
pleading guilty. Obvious typos and other problems on forged invoices busted the ruse. Telfair will be given up to 20 years in federal 
prison when sentenced Aug. 1. Terrence Williams — the 11th pick in the 2009 NBA draft — is the plot leader. He earlier pled guilty and 
awaits federal sentencing. Williams gave the former players fake invoices provided by a dentist, a doc and several non-medical 
professionals — all for illegal kickbacks. 

Suing her insurer for disability benefits backfired on Mina Raymond, with a federal district court ruling the Baton Rouge woman 
lied to Paul Revere Life about her employment status. Raymond left her job as a pharmacist after being diagnosed with multiple 
sclerosis. Even while collecting disability, Raymond worked up to 25 hours a week doing tasks she’d done at a prior pharmacy before 
her MS diagnosis. Yet she didn’t tell the insurer about her hours and income for 10 years while collecting disability benefits. The insurer 
eventually denied her disability claims, then Raymond and her hubby sued. The insurer counterclaimed, seeking over $225K for alleged 
fraud, negligent misrepresentation and unjust enrichment. The court quashed the couple’s suit. The Raymonds may be unable to prove 
any of their claims and Paul Revere may be entitled to summary judgment, the court ruled. 

Melissa Roseanne Brewer sped recklessly when her truck rammed a motorcyclist who was merging onto the highway near San 
Miguel, Calif. Brewer drove off while others stopped to help the injured motorcyclist. Brewer told her insurer several days later that 
she drove off the road and into a guardrail — and that she was receiving injury treatment. The California Highway Patrol identified the 
car involved in the crash as a Hyundai Veloster and located it at a repair shop. Forensics showed the damage was caused by a collision 
with the motorcycle, and not by a guardrail as Brewer claimed. She was the Veloster’s driver, based on vehicle records, cell data, 
eyewitnesses and her insurance claims. Brewer was convicted of insurance fraud, hit and run, and reckless driving. She’ll receive up to 
six years and eight months when sentenced April 14. 

HHS has just 450 agents to patrol for Medicare and Medicaid crime around the entire U.S. Small wonder that Uncle Sam’s 
healthcare programs are easy pickings, says an investigation by CNBC. “It’s just so easy. It’s unbelievable,” says a convicted Miami-
based Medicare swindler in the article. “You’ll be surprised. For money, they’ll do anything. It’s always been like that. And people keep 
on — they get caught, they get out, and they’ll do it all over again.” Incredibly, one scammer rented a space in the same Miami building 
that housed an HHS investigative unit. The con billed Medicare $500K for braces, orthotics and wheelchairs in the names of patients 
who didn’t exist. The brazen thefts of taxpayer money are worth your investigative read. 

Wesley Owens owned a PEO called Bison Workforce Solutions, based near Atlanta. His firm provided outsourced workers’ comp, 
HR, payroll, tax and other services to client businesses. Bison avoided paying $29M of comp premiums and bilked clients out of $25.5M 
of premiums they thought they paid for coverage. Owens bought comp coverage for Bison, then used those insurance documents to 
generate fraudulent insurance certificates, which he issued to his client businesses. Owens told his comp insurer the policy was for a 
small, white-collar firm, not his PEO clients — which included agricultural workers, roofers, limo drivers and a wide variety of other 
employees. His crony Beau Wilson recruited customers for Owens, and received commissions for each client that used the fraudulent 
services. Insurers stopped dealing with Owens because of his persistent fraud, so he teamed with another firm that already had a comp 
policy. Owens and his cohorts used that firm’s insurance documents to keep generating fake insurance certificates. He paid comp injury 
claims himself to hide that his comp policy was being misused to insure PEO clients. When the payouts grew too much to sustain, 
Owens stopped paying claims and left workers without comp and no recourse when hurt on the job. Owens and Wilson are scheduled 
for 10 years of probation, must repay $350K in cash and must repay another $14.1M. Wilson also must sell five pieces of real property 
for restitution. The California and Georgia insurance departments jointly investigated after receiving a case referral from the California 
State Compensation Insurance Fund. 

Kyle Blaine Swallow pled guilty to forging life-insurance applications to steal nearly $6K of commissions from Mutual of Omaha, 
the Idaho Department of Insurance announced. In one case, the Meridian producer submitted a claim using a dead person’s identity. 
Swallow was sentenced to three years of probation and 120 community service hours to be completed by Dec. 31 after a plea deal. He 
also must pay court costs and fees, and full restitution for his victim’s losses plus an added $1K to the insurance department. 
Swallow’s license also was revoked March 31, 2022. The Idaho Insurance Department investigated and referred the case to the state 
AG for the successful prosecution. “Misconduct by licensed agents is unacceptable and will not be tolerated by the Department,” says 
Director Dean Cameron. “Insurance agents are expected to conduct themselves with integrity and to abide by Idaho Insurance Code. 
We are grateful to the Idaho Attorney General’s Office for their assistance in bringing this individual to justice.” Insurance fraud costs 
the average American household $400-$700 of increased premiums, according to the FBI. Honest consumers thus are forced to pay 
for scams such as Swallow’s — yet another reason the Coalition so vigorously defends insurance consumers. 

Kimberly Nicole Hollingshed lied that her neighbor died. The Muscatine, Iowa woman claimed death benefits from a forged life 
policy in the neighbor’s name, even though the victim was quite alive. Hollingshed accessed her neighbor’s term-life policy and 



Mr. Biden & Mr. Putin: Exegetically Speaking Know Thy Self 

Zalma’s Insurance Fraud Letter – Page 10 –The Source For Insurance Fraud Professionals 

created an online profile for the policy without the neighbor’s permission. She then altered the victim’s policy, secretly adding herself 
as beneficiary. Hollingshed falsely reported the neighbor had died, sending the insurer a forged death certificate. The ruse worked — 
the insurer sent her $100K of death benefits. She used the money to buy three vehicles and other personal goods. Hollingshed was 
given two years in federal prison and must repay the insurance money. 

Shelley Noreika from Dillsburg, Pa told her five-year-old daughter to pretend she had seizures so Noreika could steal Medicare 
benefits for taking care of a sick child. Noreika then videotaped a bogus seizure and emailed the video to her daughter’s pediatric 
neurologist, along with false statements about her daughter’s medical condition. Other times, Noreika simply lied to docs that her 
daughter had seizures, when none occurred. Her daughter underwent an unneeded procedure that surgically placed a feeding tube in 
her lower intestine, resulting in the child becoming ill. The child was also given unneeded meds plus medical devices to aid her in 
walking. Noreika sought donations on Facebook, Amazon WishList and GoFundMe — while collecting cash, gift cards and other 
donations from churches and businesses. Her $137K scam resulted from Munchausen’s syndrome by proxy. It’s a mental illness in 
which a caregiver invents or causes an illness or injury to a person under their care, trying to gain attention and sympathy. Noreika 
was handed 30 months in federal prison and must repay the stolen money. 

The insurance industry has been less than effective in training its personnel. Their employees, whether in claims, underwriting or sales, 
are hungry for education and training to improve their work in the industry. 

Insurers without sufficient personnel to make a classroom training program practical have available options. If the insurer desires to 
honor its employees who wish to improve their knowledge and skills can do so inexpensively by adding to each employee’s library a 
complete insurance library by internationally recognized insurance coverage, claims handling, fraud, and insurance law expert and 
author, Barry Zalma, Esq., CFE. 

If funds are not available for training vendors can be willing to assist. Although vendors are usually prohibited from making gifts to the 
insurer’s employees, they may agree to donations to the insurer of educational materials that will help the employees improve their 
abilities for acknowledgement of the presentation. 

Every insurer, insurance syndicate, insurance brokerage, insurance sales agency, insurer branch office, and vendors to the insurance 
industry should add to the libraries of their various offices or employees. 

and “Excellence in Claims Handling” at https://barryzalma.substack.com/welcome. 

Insurance fraud is the most popular and perpetrated crime in the world next to, perhaps, tax fraud. The possibility of a tax-free profit, 
coupled with the commonly held belief (supported by actual arrest and conviction records) that criminal prosecution will probably not 
occur, is sometimes too difficult for normally honest people to resist.  

Each year, the effect of insurance fraud runs to billions of dollars. It is estimated that insurance fraud takes between 33 and 38 percent 
of the premiums collected and annually drains as much as $300 billion or more from the assets of insurers in the United States.  

Insurance fraud occurs when a person or entity makes false insurance claims in order to obtain compensation or benefits to which they 
are not entitled. Insurance fraud is committed in many forms, but regardless of the type, it is considered a serious crime in all 
jurisdictions.  

The Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) describes the crime of insurance fraud as follows: 

The insurance industry consists of more than 7,000 companies that collect over $1 trillion in premiums each year. The 
massive size of the industry contributes significantly to the cost of insurance fraud by providing more opportunities 
and bigger incentives for committing illegal activities. 

Costs of Fraud 
The total cost of insurance fraud (non-health insurance) is estimated to be more than $40 billion per year. That means 
Insurance Fraud costs the average U.S. family between $400 and $700 per year in the form of increased premiums. 

Common Schemes 
Premium Diversion 

 Premium diversion is the embezzlement of insurance premiums. 

 It is the most common type of insurance fraud. 
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 Generally, an insurance agent fails to send premiums to the underwriter and instead keeps the money for personal 
use. 

 Another common premium diversion scheme involves selling insurance without a license, collecting premiums 
and then not paying claims.  

Fee Churning 
 In fee churning, a series of intermediaries take commissions through reinsurance agreements. 

 The initial premium is reduced by repeated commissions until there is no longer money to pay claims. 

 The company left to pay the claims is often a business the conspirators have set up to fail. 

 When viewed alone, each transaction appears to be legitimate—only after the cumulative effect is considered 
does fraud emerge.  

Asset Diversion 
 Asset diversion is the theft of insurance company assets. 

 It occurs almost exclusively in the context of an acquisition or merger of an existing insurance company. 

 Asset diversion often involves acquiring control of an insurance company with borrowed funds. After making the 
purchase, the subject uses the assets of the acquired company to pay off the debt. The remaining assets can then be 
diverted to the subject. 

Workers’ Compensation Fraud 
 Some entities purport to provide workers’ compensation insurance at a reduced cost and then misappropriate 

premium funds without ever providing insurance. 

Disaster Fraud Schemes 
 False or exaggerated claims by policyholders. 

 Misclassification of flood damage as wind, fire, or theft. 

 Claims filed by individuals residing hundreds of miles outside the disaster-zone. 

 Bid rigging by contractors, falsely inflating the cost of repairs. 

 Contractors requiring upfront payment for services, then failing to perform the agreed upon repairs. 

 Charity fraud scams designed to misappropriate funds donated for disaster relief.1 

Some, but not all, varieties of insurance fraud include: 

Allegedly Stolen Cars 
Criminals use stolen car insurance scams in two different ways. 

First, if a legitimate owner sells the vehicle to a body shop for parts, it could be reported as stolen. The body shop tends to be in on the 
scheme, which means that the authorities do not know the parts are even sold.  

Second, the person insured simply hides the car and then declares that it was stolen. The insurance company would not be able to force 
the car owner to return the money after the car is found. 

Car Accidents 
Many accidents are staged, where the victim and the driver are accomplices.  

Sometimes, the scheme is even larger and involves witnesses and insurance investigators as well. This is rare, but it does happen.  

In the large scale schemes, the value of the vehicle that caused the accident, and the vehicle that was involved in the accident, are usually 
inflated greatly. The cost of damage is inflated as well, meaning the insurance company will write off the vehicles and pay for their 
value. The money is then used to repair the vehicles so the fraud can be committed again, and the rest of the money is spread between 
those involved in the scheme. 

Car Damage 
Sometimes, people report a small accident and then receive an estimate to have the car fixed. The money they receive is then not used 
to repair the vehicle.  

Health Insurance Billing Fraud 
Health care professionals involved in fraudulent schemes do so to profit without providing health care services. For instance, they may 
bill health insurance companies for work that wasn’t done, or for unnecessary work, or they may inflate the prices for services that they 
rendered. A patient may visit a physician for a regular check-up, but, without the knowledge of the patient, the doctor bills the insurance 
company for an in-patient surgery. In so doing, the patient, as well as the insurer, is actually the victim of fraud, but he or she will never 
know about it. 

Unnecessary Medical Procedures 

 
1 https://www.fbi.gov/stats-services/publications/insurance-fraud 



Mr. Biden & Mr. Putin: Exegetically Speaking Know Thy Self 

Zalma’s Insurance Fraud Letter – Page 12 –The Source For Insurance Fraud Professionals 

If you feel that your physician is constantly ordering tests for you that you do not quite understand, you may be a victim of insurance 
fraud. This is unfortunate, but it is also very common. Since a person with health insurance is not paying for the service, they do nothing 
to compel the health care provider to only provide necessary services and only bill for necessary services. 

Staged Home Fires – Arson-for-Profit 
This is one of the most dangerous forms of fraud and it has actually cost people their lives. Insurance companies pay out billions of 
dollars every year for home insurance, and fire is one of the most prevalent claim. Sometimes, the fire is staged by the person insured. 
Sometimes it is done through vandalism. In a staged fire, homeowners will usually remove any items of value and keep their family 
away before causing a fire. Alternatively, they insure certain high value items first, and then cause the fire. 

With staged home fires, the homeowners themselves are usually not at home. They also generally have a sound alibi for their actual 
whereabouts. This is because they will hire a criminal to start the fire, often also staging a break-in first. This makes it look as if the 
homeowner has been the victim of a serious crime. 

Storm Fraud 
Whenever a heavy storm happens, the number of claims for storm damage goes up. While most of these claims are genuine, a number 
of them will be fraudulent. Property owners may, for instance, declare higher damage costs so that they can receive a higher settlement. 
Alternatively, some will present a claim for a non-existent loss, guessing that the insurance company is too busy to come and check the 
damage, particularly if it is quite minor. 

Abandoned House Fire 
For instance, homeowners may have difficulties selling their properties when they have to move to a different city for work. 
Alternatively, a landlord may be struggling to rent out properties in an unpopular neighborhood. 

Whenever an abandoned house burns down, there is always a fire inspector on site. This is the result of a morale hazard that few, if any 
insurer, are willing to take. By leaving the property empty and unlocked it tempts a homeless person to “camp” in the house and set a 
fire to keep warm only to find the entire dwelling in flames. The insured may then collect for the fire damage even though the insured 
had no actual involvement in the fire cause. 

Faked Death 
Fraudsters will take out an insurance policy on their own life, making their spouse the sole beneficiary. After a few months, the con 
artist will fake their own death, and the spouse will receive the benefit. After the funeral, the spouse will suddenly disappear and move 
abroad, and the spouses reunite and make use of the claimed money.  

Renter’s Insurance 
The fraudster will usually take out a renter’s insurance policy, which is very affordable, to cover their belongings. Before they move 
out, or when their finances turn sour, the renters will sell their possessions without leaving a paper trail. Afterwards, they will report it 
as stolen and seek to collect the true value of the property that had been sold earlier from the renter’s insurance company. 

Hundreds Of Millions of Potential Liability Result from Federal Jury False Claims Act Verdict  
Cameron-Ehlen Group, Inc., which does business as “Precision Lens,” and its owner, revealing a prime example of the significant 
interplay between the Anti-Kickback Statute (“AKS”) and the False Claims Act (“FCA”), a federal jury has returned a verdict of more 
than $43 million in damages against the Cameron-Ehlen Group, Inc. The verdict in this long-running and closely watched fraud case 
out of the U.S. District Court for the District of Minnesota comes after a six-week trial, with the jury ultimately finding that the 
defendants paid kickbacks to ophthalmic surgeons to induce their use of defendants’ products in cataract surgeries reimbursed by 
Medicare, resulting in the submission of 64,575 false claims between 2006 and 2015. 

While the jury calculated damages at the massive sum of $43 million, that number may grow exponentially after the court applies the 
FCA’s treble-damages calculation (increasing the liability to $129 million) and statutory penalties of between $5,500 and $11,000 for 
each of the 64,575 claims (resulting in additional penalties of $355 million to $710 million). All told, the total FCA liability is expected 
to range between $485 million and $839 million. 

The 2015 qui tam complaint at the heart of this matter asserted that, in exchange for “lavish hunting, fishing and golf trips, private plane 
flights, frequent-flyer miles and other items of value,” ophthalmologists used products supplied by Precision Lens in various 
ophthalmology procedures. More specifically, the owner of Precision Lens belonged to numerous elite clubs, owned a private resort, 
and partially owned exclusive hunting land where he purportedly entertained physicians without receiving fair market value 
compensation between 2004 and 2014. According to the complaint, to finance these trips, Precision Lens created a “slush fund” that 
was used to “hide” over $100,000 in “marketing rebates.” After these excursions, physicians allegedly ordered supplies from Precision 
Lens — departing from their prior practice of buying supplies directly from the manufacturer. As a result, the complaint posited, 
Precision Lens became “the exclusive distributor in the Midwest region.” 
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The Government intervened in the suit in August 2017. Also in 2017, two other defendants, Sightpath Medical — a former corporate 
partner of Precision Lens — and its former CEO, agreed to pay $12 million to resolve similar allegations of illegally providing luxury 
trips and consulting agreements to induce the use of specific eye-surgery products in Medicare surgeries. 

This case highlights the interplay between the AKS and the FCA with the Government arguing that claims for payment submitted to 
Medicare or Medicaid that include items or services tainted by an AKS violation are automatically deemed false claims under the FCA, 
regardless of whether a defendant had the specific intent to violate the AKS or FCA. Moreover, because there are no offset provisions 
under the AKS, the Government takes the position that the entirety of the claim is deemed tainted and that there should be no 
consideration for value conveyed or the medical reasonableness of using the product at issue. As a result, and as demonstrated by this 
case, AKS violations under Medicare or Medicaid can snowball into an avalanche of damages.  

This case will be one to continue watching as the judge has not yet issued a decision on the magnitude of the penalties. 

Pill Mill Doctor Pleads Guilty to Medicaid Fraud, Drug Charges 
Harvey Jenkins operated Aria Orthopedics in south Oklahoma City, where he prescribed large volumes of opioids and other narcotics 
from January 2010 to February 2015.  Jenkins, a former Oklahoma City physician, charged in 2016 with 29 felony counts and one 
misdemeanor, pleaded guilty last week to Medicaid fraud and multiple drug offenses.  

His plea is the result of an investigation conducted by the Oklahoma Attorney General’s Medicaid Fraud Control Unit. 

The investigation revealed that Jenkins cared for approximately 90 patients a day, most of whom were insured through Medicaid. In 
addition to the prescriptions he wrote, Jenkins also used another doctor’s signature to write prescriptions without her permission. 

Jenkins’ plea agreement includes a 20-year suspended prison sentence, probation and fines, investigative costs and restitution in the 
amount of $181,474.12. He agreed to make an initial payment of $60,000 within 30 days and to make monthly payments of at least 
$600, beginning in May, for the remaining balance. Jenkins also agreed to surrender his medical license and never to seek employment 
relating to the practice of medicine or caring for children or vulnerable adults. 

The counts he pleaded guilty to include: 

 Eighteen counts of illegal possession, distribution, dispensing, prescribing controlled dangerous substances. 

 One count of maintaining a place, building where controlled dangerous substances are kept. 

 Six counts of making or causing to be made false claims under the Oklahoma Medicaid program. 

 Five counts of failure to maintain Medicaid records. 

ZIFL wonders why the 20 year sentence was suspended for such a serious crime. 

$7.1 Million from Former Saratoga County Nursing Home for Years of Fraud and Neglect  
Saratoga Center for Rehabilitation and Skilled Nursing Care (Saratoga Center) agreed to pay Medicaid and New York more than 
$7.1 million from the Saratoga Center, a former nursing home in Ballston Spa, and its owners, unlicensed operator, and landlord for 
years of fraud and resident neglect.  

In 2017, following a financial dispute, Saratoga Center’s landlord pressured the owners, who were the licensed operators, to relinquish 
control of the nursing home to the unlicensed operator, and never reported the change to the New York State Department of Health 
(DOH). Under the control of this unlicensed operator and his associates, conditions at Saratoga Center rapidly declined. The facility 
failed to provide medication to residents, lacked hot water and clean linens, and residents suffered falls, pressure sores, and other 
significant lapses in care.  

The owners, unlicensed operator, and landlord have admitted wrongdoing, and together, will return $7.1 million to Medicaid, with $4.3 
million going to New York. In addition, the owners, unlicensed operator, as well as the entities that owned the nursing home’s real 
property, are excluded from participating in Medicaid and Medicare for at least 10 years.  

Under New York law, owners of nursing homes have a “special obligation” to ensure the highest possible quality of life for residents, 
and to staff the facility at a level sufficient to provide adequate care to all residents. In addition, prospective owners of nursing homes 
are required to make truthful disclosures to DOH in their applications to become operators. Nursing home operators are also prohibited 
from delegating key duties to other individuals who have not been approved as operators by DOH. 

Saratoga Center operated as a 257-bed nursing home from 2015 until it closed in 2021. The Office of the Attorney General’s (OAG) 
investigation found that when the owners applied to DOH in 2014 to get a license to operate Saratoga Center, they and the landlord 
deceived DOH about their relationship, claiming it was at “arm’s length,” and that the owners were seeking private loans to fund their 
acquisition of the nursing home. In reality, the owners and the landlord were already in business together, and the landlord was funding 
the purchase of Saratoga Center. In 2017, the landlord pressured the owners to relinquish control of Saratoga Center to the unlicensed 
operator and other associates but did not report the change to DOH. 

The conditions at Saratoga Center declined under the control of the new, unlicensed operator and associates, leading to a breakdown in 
the quality of care provided to residents. From when they took over in 2017 to when Saratoga Center closed in 2021, the unlicensed 
operator and associates mismanaged the nursing home’s finances and failed to adequately staff the facility, causing residents to suffer 
the consequences.  

Residents at Saratoga Center suffered significant medication errors. The investigation also revealed that residents experienced excessive 
and unnecessary falls and injuries, including the development of pressure sores that went untreated. Under the management of the 
unlicensed operator and associates, Saratoga Center failed to: 
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 Maintain consistent and reliable hot water throughout the facility;  

 Keep a sufficient stock of clean bed linens for residents; and 

 Manage trash and waste removal in a timely fashion, subjecting residents to unsanitary and unhealthy conditions. 

In 2018, both DOH and the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) fined Saratoga Center for serious deficiencies and 
violations, and in 2019, CMS designated Saratoga Center a “Special Focus Facility,” signifying it was among the poorest performing 
nursing homes in the country.  

The individuals and entities party to the settlements are Alan “Ari” Schwartz and Jeffrey Vegh, the owners and licensed operators of 
Saratoga Center; Saratoga Center for Care LLC, the entity through which Schwartz and Vegh owned the nursing home; Jack Jaffa, 
the unlicensed operator; Saratoga Care and Rehabilitation Center LLC, the entity through which Jaffa operated Saratoga Center; Leon 
Melohn, the landlord; and 149 Ballston Ave LLC and Ballston Two LLC, entities Melohn controls that owned the real property on 
which Saratoga Center was located. 

Under the settlements announced today, the owners, unlicensed operator, and landlord will collectively pay $7,168,000 to Medicaid, of 
which $4,300,800 will go directly to New York state. The remaining $2,867,200 will be paid to the federal government. The owners, 
unlicensed operator, and the entities that own Saratoga Center’s real property will also be excluded from Medicare, Medicaid, and all 
other federal health care programs for at least 10 years.  

The investigation and settlements were the result of a coordinated effort among OAG, USAO-NDNY, the Civil Division of the United 
States Department of Justice (DOJ), and the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Inspector General (HHS-OIG). 
Attorney General James thanks USAO-NDNY, DOJ, HHS-OIG, and DOH for their partnership and assistance. 

Nurse Practitioner Pleads Guilty 
Stefanie King, 46, of Ulster, PA, pleaded guilty to several felony counts and has surrendered her Certified Registered Nurse 
Practitioner’s license. She is also ordered to pay nearly $450,000 in restitution. 

King, a Bradford County, PA nurse practitioner pleaded guilty to prescribing medications without a collaborating doctor and false 
billing. Some of the charged conduct happened while she was engaged in an inappropriate relationship with a patient. 

The investigation found that King falsely billed in excess of $300,000 to private insurers, as well as $100,000 to the Commonwealth, 
for services below acceptable medical treatment standards. Additionally, she wrote over 3,750 prescriptions to patients while not meeting 
the requirements to prescribe under Pennsylvania law. 

King entered into a sexual relationship with a patient beginning in November 2016 at her Athens practice and billed a private insurer 
for the time they spent together. King later entered into a second relationship with a different patient and continued to prescribe controlled 
substances to him, despite discontinuing medical care after the relationship began. 

Under Pennsylvania law, nurse practitioners are required to enter into collaborative agreements with Pennsylvania licensed physicians 
in order to perform medical diagnoses and to prescribe controlled substances. Investigators also found that King misled past physician 
collaborators and renewed previous agreements without their knowledge. 

In all, King pleaded guilty to one felony count of violating the Controlled Substance Act- Obtained by Subterfuge; one felony count of 
Medicaid Fraud; one felony count of Insurance Fraud; and one felony count of violating the Controlled Substance Act- Delivery by 
Practitioner. She has agreed not to practice as a nurse for the duration of her sentence and voluntarily surrendered her license to practice 
as a Certified Registered Nurse Practitioner. She will pay restitution of $348,760 to Highmark and $100,425 to Community Care 
Behavioral Health Organization. 

Acute Care Hospital and Radiology Imaging Practice to Pay More Than $2 Million to Resolve a False 
Claims Act Case Regarding the Billing of Services to Medicare and Medicaid 
Luminis Health Doctors Community Medical Center, Inc., (“DCMC”), and Diagnostic Imaging Associates, LLC (“DIA”), both 
located in Lanham, Maryland, agreed to pay the United States $2,002,052.17 to resolve allegations that they violated the federal False 
Claims Act.  

According to the settlement agreement, DCMC and DIA entered into a long-standing arrangement whereby DIA billed Medicare and 
Medicaid under its assigned number for both the professional services provided by DIA and for the technical services rendered by 
DCMC’s outpatient cancer screening facility (the “Center”). DIA then paid the Center a portion of the Medicare or Medicaid reimbursed 
global fee for the technical services provided by the Center. The Center was not enrolled in Medicare and Medicaid during that time, so 
it did not have a billing number and was not eligible for reimbursement from those programs. 

DCMC owns and operates a hospital (“Hospital”) that provides acute care services, including radiation oncology and breast health care 
services. Specifically, the Hospital provides biopsy and mammography services and bone density screenings to diagnose and treat breast 
cancer and other diseases through an outpatient cancer screening facility (the Center). DIA provides diagnostic and interventional 
radiology services. DIA executed a written agreement with the Hospital to provide diagnostic and interventional radiology services to 
the Center, as well as the interpretation of such tests. The Center, through the Hospital, provided the imaging equipment, office space, 
technicians and supplies to facilitate the performance of the radiology-related tests. The contract between the Hospital and DIA specified 
that tests performed at the Center would be billed by the Center on a global fee basis under the Center’s provider number, with DIA 
being paid a percentage of the Medicare or Medicaid reimbursed global fee for performing the professional component, that is, 
interpreting the tests. A global fee reflects payment for both the technical and professional components of a medical service billed 
together as a unit.  
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However, the Center did not obtain its own number under which it could bill Medicare and Medicaid for the services provided to 
beneficiaries insured by those programs.  Between March 15, 2010, and October 19, 2020, by agreement between the Hospital and DIA, 
DIA submitted claims to Medicare and Medicaid using DIA’s supplier number to bill those programs for both the professional and 
technical components of the services rendered in the Center even though the Hospital performed the technical component of the Center’s 
services. Both the Hospital and DIA knew that the Center did not have a billing number as required by Medicare and Medicaid to be 
eligible for reimbursement for rendered medical services. 

The claims resolved by this settlement are allegations. The settlement is not an admission of liability by DCMC and DIA, nor a 
concession by the United States that its claims are not well founded. The case arose from DCMC’s and DIA’s reporting of the billing 
arrangement to the United States Department of Health and Human Services Provider Self-Disclosure Protocol; DCMC and DIA 
cooperated throughout the ensuing federal investigation conducted by the United States Attorney’s Office for the District of Maryland. 

Jury Convicts Pair of Fraud and Health Care Fraud in Toledo  
Dr. Oliver Jenkins, age 60, and Sherry-Ann Jenkins, age 58, of Jessup, Georgia, were convicted by a federal jury of conspiracy, mail 
fraud, wire fraud, and health care fraud on Friday, March 17, in Toledo, Ohio following a two- week trial before Judge Jack Zouhary. 

Dr. Oliver Jenkins, who was an Ear, Nose, and Throat M.D. at the Toledo Clinic, and his wife, Sherry-Ann Jenkins, who had a Ph.D. 
but was not licensed to practice medicine in Ohio, started a new business called the “The Toledo Clinic Cognitive Center.” The Jenkins 
represented to the Toledo Clinic that patients suspected of cognitive disorders, particularly dementia and Alzheimer’s Disease, could 
come to the Cognitive Center for neurocognitive testing, diagnosis, treatment, and referrals, and that Sherry-Ann Jenkins would 
administer the neurocognitive testing under the supervision of Dr. Oliver Jenkins.  

The Jenkins represented that Dr. Oliver Jenkins would make a diagnosis, and provide medical treatment, or a referral. Instead, the 
Jenkins engaged in a scheme to defraud. Dr. Oliver Jenkins never saw or treated patients at the Cognitive Center. Sherry-Ann Jenkins 
ordered PET scans of patients’ brains, interpreted the scans, diagnosed patients, including a college-aged student, with Alzheimer’s 
Disease, Dementia, or other impairments, recommended patients take coconut oil to improve memory, and instructed certain patients to 
see her every 3-6 weeks for the rest of their lives. The Jenkins billed Cognitive Center patients and health care benefits programs using 
Dr. Oliver Jenkins’ billing number. 

This case was investigated by the Federal Bureau of Investigation in Toledo, Ohio, the United States Department of Health and Human 
Services, Office of Inspector General in Cleveland, Ohio, the Ohio Attorney General’s Medicaid Fraud Control Unit, and the Ohio State 
Medical Board. The case is being prosecuted by Assistant U.S. Attorneys Brian McDonough and Robert Melching. 

Mississippi Doctor Avoids Jail Time in Multimillion-Dollar Cream Scheme Fraud 
Dr. Gregory Auzenne, 51, of Meridian, Mississippi will not spend time in jail after pleading guilty to federal misdemeanor charges for 
his role in a health care fraud scheme that prosecutors said cost insurers about $515 million. 

Auzenne entered a guilty plea March 20, 2023 to charges related to his failure to disclose information involving expensive prescription 
pain cream. He was sentenced to five years of probation and ordered to pay a $20,000 fine and $116,623 in restitution. He was accused 
of bilking TriCare, the health insurance program for members of the military and veterans, along with other insurers. 

Prosecutors said Auzenne was part of a widespread fraud scheme that began in Mississippi and cost in-state insurers about $515 million. 
Auzenne was accused of causing about $18 million in fraud, in part by signing preprinted prescription forms for medicines. He was one 
of more than two dozen charged in the case. In 2020, he was acquitted on seven of eight counts against him. Jurors were unable to agree 
on the eighth count of making false statements. Before he changed his plea, Auzenne was set to stand trial earlier in March. 

Workers’ compensation insurers have said for years that pain creams and compounded medicines have led to fraudulent billing and have 
driven up medical costs. 

Former Niskayuna Surgeon to Pay $42,000 For Defrauding Medicare  
Steven A. St. Lucia agreed to pay $42,000 to the United States to resolve allegations that he caused Union Foot Solutions, LLC, d/b/a 
Union Orthotics and Pedorthics (Union Foot Solutions), to submit false claims for payment to Medicare in violation of the False 
Claims Act, announced United States Attorney Carla B. Freedman.  St. Lucia has pled guilty to state health care fraud charges and is 
scheduled for sentencing on March 17, 2023. 

As part of the Settlement Agreement, St. Lucia admitted to the following: 

1. In early 2000, the New York State Board of Professional Medical Conduct revoked St. Lucia’s medical license based on 
findings that he had committed conduct demonstrating moral unfitness and gross incompetence. Later that year, the Office of 
Inspector General for the United States Department of Health and Human Services (HHS-OIG) excluded St. Lucia from 
participating in all Federal health care programs, including Medicare. The effect of an exclusion is that no Federal health care 
program may make payment for items or services furnished by an excluded person, or at the medical direction or on the 
prescription of an excluded person. 

2. St. Lucia subsequently opened Schenectady-based Union Foot Solutions, a medical supply company, and applied to the 
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) for Union Foot Solutions to participate in Medicare. That enrollment 
application falsely represented both that St. Lucia had never had a revocation or suspension of a license to provide health care 
and that he had never faced suspension or exclusion from Federal health care programs.  

3. CMS denied the application, explaining that St. Lucia was “excluded from the Medicare program” and, therefore, Union Foot 
Solutions “cannot receive Medicare payment.”  St. Lucia later transferred his ownership interest in Union Foot Solutions to a 
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third party, and Union Foot Solutions’ new owner reapplied for and obtained authorization to participate in Medicare. St. Lucia 
continued to work for Union Foot Solutions and rendered orthotic and prosthetic care to patients. 

The United States alleged that, from December 1, 2016 through February 28, 2018, St. Lucia caused Union Foot Solutions to present 
false claims for payment to Medicare for services that he furnished to and ordered for Medicare beneficiaries. The United States further 
alleged that, to conceal his involvement in the treatment of Medicare beneficiaries and to circumvent the effect of his exclusion, St. 
Lucia caused Union Foot Solutions to bill services that he furnished to and items that he ordered for Medicare beneficiaries in the name 
of another pedorthist. 

Jelly Bean Communications Design and its Manager Settle False Claims Act Liability  
Jelly Bean Communications Design LLC (Jelly Bean) and Jeremy Spinks have agreed to pay $293,771 to resolve False Claims Act 
allegations that they failed to secure personal information on a federally funded Florida children’s health insurance website, which Jelly 
Bean created, hosted, and maintained. 

The Florida Healthy Kids Corporation (FHKC) is a state-created entity that offers health and dental insurance for Florida children ages 
five through 18. FHKC receives federal Medicaid funds as well as state funds to provide children’s health insurance programs. On Oct. 
31, 2013, FHKC contracted with Jelly Bean for “website design, programming and hosting services.” The agreement required that Jelly 
Bean provide a fully functional hosting environment that complied with the protections for personal information imposed by the Health 
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, and Jelly Bean agreed to adapt, modify, and create the necessary code on the 
webserver to support the secure communication of data. Jeremy Spinks, the company’s manager, 50% owner, and sole employee, signed 
the agreement. Under its contracts with FHKC, between 2013 and 2020, Jelly Bean created, hosted, and maintained the website 
HealthyKids.org for FHKC, including the online application into which parents and others entered data to apply for state Medicaid 
insurance coverage for children. 

The settlement announced March 14, 2023 resolved allegations that from January 1, 2014, through Dec. 14, 2020, contrary to its 
representations in agreements and invoices, Jelly Bean did not provide secure hosting of applicants’ personal information and instead 
knowingly failed to properly maintain, patch, and update the software systems underlying HealthyKids.org and its related websites, 
leaving the site and the data Jelly Bean collected from applicants vulnerable to attack. In or around early December 2020, more than 
500,000 applications submitted on HealthyKids.org were revealed to have been hacked, potentially exposing the applicants’ personal 
identifying information and other data. The United States alleged that Jelly Bean was running multiple outdated and vulnerable 
applications, including some software that Jelly Bean had not updated or patched since November 2013. In response to this data breach 
and Jelly Bean’s cybersecurity failures, FHKC shut down the website’s application portal in December 2020.   

Man Pleads Guilty to $1.9M Baby Formula Fraud Scheme 
Vladislav Kotlyar, 43, of Staten Island, New York pleaded guilty March 16, 2023 to defrauding insurance plans and medical suppliers 
by fraudulently procuring specialty baby formula.  

According to court documents, Kotlyar submitted and caused the submission of forged prescriptions and medical records for specialty 
baby formula that was paid for by health insurers. Kotlyar obtained prescriptions and medical records for infants who were prescribed 
specialty baby formula and forged those records to obtain additional specialty baby formula. After receiving the specialty baby formula, 
Kotlyar fabricated issues with the shipments, including by falsely claiming they were damaged or the incorrect formula to acquire 
additional formula at no additional cost. Kotlyar then sold the fraudulently obtained formula. As part of the scheme, Kotlyar and his co-
conspirators submitted more than $1.9 million in fraudulent claims to health insurers, including during a national shortage of baby 
formula. Kotlyar agreed to forfeit approximately $1 million and repay more than $738,000 in restitution.  

Kotlyar pleaded guilty to mail fraud and faces a maximum penalty of 20 years in prison. A sentencing date has not been set. A federal 
district court judge will determine any sentence after considering the U.S. Sentencing Guidelines and other statutory factors. 

Texas Man Sentenced to 66 Months in Prison for $2 Million Medicare Fraud  
Jordan Thomas Broome, 37, a Texas man was sentenced March 16, 2023 to 66 months in prison for conspiring to defraud Medicare of 
more than $2 million by submitting thousands of fraudulent claims for durable medical equipment. 

According to court documents, Broome was the owner and operator of Beach Medical Suppliers, LLC (“Beach Medical”), which had 
its storefront in Virginia Beach. Broome enrolled Beach Medical in Medicare in 2018 and thereafter submitted thousands of fraudulent 
claims for durable medical equipment such as back and knee braces. Working with other companies and individuals, Beach Medical 
would unlawfully obtain the personal identifying information of elderly Medicare beneficiaries, mail them braces that they never wanted 
or needed, and then submit fraudulent bills to Medicare. The scheme included a network of doctors who would “robo-sign” prescriptions 
for patients the doctors had never met. During the scheme, which lasted until federal agents executed a search warrant at Beach Medical 
in late 2020, Beach Medical obtained approximately $2,153,200.44 in fraudulent billings involving more than 2,000 Medicare 
beneficiaries. 

Broome is a graduate of the U.S. Naval Academy and a former Naval officer. 

Athens, Georgia, Pain Medicine Owner, Practice Manager Agree to $5 Million  
Mark A. Ellis, M.D., and his practice, Ellis Pain Center (EPC), a pain management practice in the Athens, Georgia area agreed to a 
$5,000,000 civil settlement with the U.S. Part of the civil settlement includes EPC’s practice manager, Patsy Allen.  

The case that was resolved by this settlement agreement — U.S. v. Mark A. Ellis, M.D., Patsy Allen, Mark A. Ellis, M.D., P.C., and Ellis 
Practice Management, LLC, 3:19-cv-107 — was filed on Nov. 27, 2019. The settlement was finalized on Friday, March 17, 2023. 
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The defendants agreed to pay $5,000,000 to the United States to resolve allegations that they violated the False Claims Act (FCA) by 
submitting bills to the Medicare program for urine drug tests that were not performed, urine drug tests that were not medically necessary 
and for diagnostic tests that were not medically necessary for the treatment of its pain patients. The settlement resolves a civil 
investigation initiated by the Northern District of Georgia in the throes of the opioid epidemic. In 2015, the Middle District of Georgia 
joined the investigation and the two offices worked together to bring about today’s announced resolution.  

The FCA is a federal law that imposes civil liability on any persons or entities who submit, or cause to be submitted, false claims for 
payment to the federal government or its contractors. The liability that can be imposed under the statute is treble damages (that is, three 
times the loss caused by the false claims) and a civil penalty between $12,537 to $25,076 per false claim. The FCA is the primary 
authority used by the United States Attorney’s Office’s Civil Division to redress fraud, waste, and abuse within federal programs, 
including, but not limited to, Medicare, Medicaid, and TRICARE. 

The United States alleged that Dr. Ellis, Patsy Allen and EPC billed Medicare for individual and expensive quantitative urine drug tests 
that it did not actually conduct and, in fact, could not have conducted on its immunoassay analyzer. Additionally, Dr. Ellis, Ms. Allen 
and EPC allegedly billed Medicare for the same urine drug tests and diagnostic tests on its patients without regard to the patients’ 
individual signs, symptoms and medical needs and simply in a desire to increase EPC’s revenue. 

The claims resolved by this settlement are allegations only, and there has been no determination or admission of liability. 

Acute Care Hospital and Radiology Imaging Practice to Pay More Than $2 Million  
Luminis Health Doctors Community Medical Center, Inc., (“DCMC”), and Diagnostic Imaging Associates, LLC (“DIA”), both 
located in Lanham, Maryland, have agreed to pay the United States $2,002,052.17 to resolve allegations that they violated the federal 
False Claims Act.  

According to the settlement agreement, DCMC and DIA entered into a long-standing arrangement whereby DIA billed Medicare and 
Medicaid under its assigned number for both the professional services provided by DIA and for the technical services rendered by 
DCMC’s outpatient cancer screening facility (the “Center”). DIA then paid the Center a portion of the Medicare or Medicaid reimbursed 
global fee for the technical services provided by the Center. The Center was not enrolled in Medicare and Medicaid during that time, so 
it did not have a billing number and was not eligible for reimbursement from those programs. 

DCMC owns and operates a hospital (“Hospital”) that provides acute care services, including radiation oncology and breast health care 
services. Specifically, the Hospital provides biopsy and mammography services and bone density screenings to diagnose and treat breast 
cancer and other diseases through an outpatient cancer screening facility (the Center). DIA provides diagnostic and interventional 
radiology services. DIA executed a written agreement with the Hospital to provide diagnostic and interventional radiology services to 
the Center, as well as the interpretation of such tests. The Center, through the Hospital, provided the imaging equipment, office space, 
technicians and supplies to facilitate the performance of the radiology-related tests. The contract between the Hospital and DIA specified 
that tests performed at the Center would be billed by the Center on a global fee basis under the Center’s provider number, with DIA 
being paid a percentage of the Medicare or Medicaid reimbursed global fee for performing the professional component, that is, 
interpreting the tests. A global fee reflects payment for both the technical and professional components of a medical service billed 
together as a unit. 

However, the Center did not obtain its own number under which it could bill Medicare and Medicaid for the services provided to 
beneficiaries insured by those programs. Between March 15, 2010, and October 19, 2020, by agreement between the Hospital and DIA, 
DIA submitted claims to Medicare and Medicaid using DIA’s supplier number to bill those programs for both the professional and 
technical components of the services rendered in the Center even though the Hospital performed the technical component of the Center’s 
services. Both the Hospital and DIA knew that the Center did not have a billing number as required by Medicare and Medicaid to be 
eligible for reimbursement for rendered medical services. 

Missouri Doctor Admits Defrauding Medicare, Medicaid  
Dr. Justin G. LaMonda, 41, pleaded guilty in U.S. District Court in St. Louis to two counts of making false statements related to health 
care matters. LaMonda, a doctor from Moberly, Missouri pleaded guilty to federal charges and admitted falsely using his father’s name 
to bill Medicare and Medicaid for medical services. 

Dr. LaMonda admitted as part of his plea that he and his father agreed to bill Medicare and Missouri Medicaid for services performed 
by Dr. LaMonda as if they had actually been performed by Dr. LaMonda’s father, who was also a doctor. 

The Missouri Board of Registration for the Healing Arts suspended Dr. LaMonda’s medical license for 30 days effective Aug. 10, 2017 
after he was accused of engaging in sexual activity with his office manager and prescribing her controlled substances “without sufficient 
examination and outside of the usual course of professional practice.” 

On Dec. 20, 2018, a Medicare administrative contractor revoked his Medicare Part B privileges after determining that he submitted 
reimbursement claims for services performed when he was suspended. Then, on Sept. 12, 2019, the Missouri Medicaid Audit and 
Compliance Unit terminated his Medicare provider number. 

Dr. LaMonda admitted that as early as Dec. 20, 2018, he and his father agreed to bill Medicare for services performed by Dr. LaMonda 
as if they had been performed by his father. After Dr. LaMonda’s Missouri Medicaid billing privileges were terminated, the pair 
expanded their scheme to include Medicaid claims, the plea says. 

Dr. LaMonda instructed his billing personnel to use his father’s unique billing provider number on claims for payment, on referrals to 
other health care providers and on orders for durable medical equipment, falsely claiming that the father had performed the medical 
services or ordered additional equipment or treatment, the plea says. 
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When payments were received for services performed by Dr. LaMonda, his father would transfer the funds to Dr. LaMonda, the plea 
agreement says. Dr. LaMonda admitted causing total losses of $537,322 to Medicare and Missouri Medicaid. 

Physician Convicted of $5M Health Care Fraud Scheme 
Frederick Gooding, 71, of Wilmington, Delaware, owned and operated a now shuttered physiatry and pain management practice in 
Washington, D.C. A federal jury convicted Gooding, a physician, for a $5 million health care fraud scheme. 

According to court documents and evidence presented at trial, Between 2015 and 2018, Gooding fraudulently billed Medicare more 
than $5 million for injections he did not perform, or did not provide as billed, including complicated spinal injections for which he did 
not own the necessary equipment. 

Gooding was convicted of 11 counts of health care fraud. He is scheduled to be sentenced on June 26 and faces a maximum penalty of 
10 years in prison on each count. A federal district court judge will determine any sentence after considering the U.S. Sentencing 
Guidelines and other statutory factors. 

Former NBA Player Sebastian Telfair Pleads Guilty to NBA Insurance Fraud Scam 
Sebastian Telfair, the high school basketball star who never fulfilled his potential during his nomadic NBA career, pleaded guilty 
Wednesday to his role in submitting false claims in an effort to defraud the NBA Players’ Health and Welfare Benefit Plan. 

According to Bloomberg, Telfair is one of several NBA players who intended to defraud the league’s health care plan. 

The 37-year-old former New York City high school standout played for a number of NBA teams during his career. Telfair is the latest 
former player to be convicted for providing false invoices in order to receive kickbacks from others involved in the scheme. 

He was one of 18 former NBA players charged in the scheme. The other players involved in the scam were Milt Palacio, Antoine 
Wright, Charles Watson, Darius Miles, Ruben Patterson, Eddie Robinson, Gregory Smith, Glen Davis, Jamario Moon, 
Terrence Williams, Alan Anderson, Tony Allen, Shannon Brown, William Bynum, Melvin Ely, Christopher Douglas-Roberts, 
and Tony Wroten. 

Williams, the alleged leader of the plot, pleaded guilty last August. He admitted to recruiting other people and supplying them with 
fake invoices that were provided by a California dentist, a doctor in Washington state, and several non-medical professionals in 
exchange for kickbacks. 

While in court on Wednesday, Telfair said he participated in the plan because he needed the money to pay for a divorce and for 
attorneys who were hired for a previous criminal case. Telfair was previously given a 3 1/2 year prison sentence for possession of a 
weapon after police discovered weapons in a truck during a traffic stop in June. A New York appeals court upheld his sentence last 
October. 

“I needed the money for my legal fees,” Telfair told US District Judge Valerie Caproni at his plea hearing Wednesday. “I was 
accused of a crime I didn’t commit. I was fighting for my life. I am still fighting for my life.” 

Telfair, the cousin of another former NBA player, Stephon Marbury, faces up to 20 years in prison. He’ll be sentenced August 1. 

Hyde Park Man Pleads Guilty to COVID-Relief and Federal Assistance Benefit Fraud  
Fernando Mateo Valenzuela, 69, a Hyde Park, Massachusetts man pleaded guilty February 27, 2023 in federal court in Boston to using 
a stolen identity to fraudulently obtain pandemic relief funds and Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) benefits, 
previously known as Food Stamps. 

Valenzuela, 69, pleaded guilty to three counts of mail fraud, two counts of aggravated identity theft and two counts of misrepresentation 
of a Social Security number. U.S. District Court Judge Leo T. Sorokin scheduled sentencing for May, 24 2023.  

Valenzuela used the identity of a United States citizen to apply for and receive $29,051 in Pandemic Unemployment Assistance (PUA) 
benefits, made available under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act. Valenzuela also used the identity to 
apply for and receive $7,230 in SNAP benefits. 

The charges of mail fraud each provide for a sentence of up to 20 years in prison, three of supervised release and a fine of up to $250,000. 
The charges of aggravated identity theft each provide for a mandatory minimum sentence of two years in prison, one of supervised 
release and a fine of up to $250,000. The charges of misrepresentation of a Social Security number each provide for a sentence of up to 
five years in prison, up to three of supervised release and a fine of up to $250,000. Sentences are imposed by a federal district court 
judge based upon the U.S. Sentencing Guidelines and statutes which govern the determination of a sentence in a criminal case. 

The investigation was conducted by Homeland Security Investigation’s Document and Benefit Fraud Task Force (DBFTF), a specialized 
investigative group comprising personnel from various state, local, and federal agencies with expertise in detecting, deterring, and 
disrupting organizations and individuals involved in various types of document, identity, and benefit fraud schemes. 

James L. Luketich, M.D., University of Pittsburgh Medical Center, and University of Pittsburgh 
Physicians Agree to Pay $8.5 Million and Implement Monitoring Actions to Resolve False Claims 
Allegations  
James L. Luketich, M.D., University of Pittsburgh Medical Center (“UPMC”), and University of Pittsburgh Physicians (“UPP”), 
agreed to resolve the lawsuit the United States filed against those Defendants in September 2021. As part of that Settlement Agreement, 
Dr. Luketich, UPMC, and UPP agreed to pay $8.5 million to the United States to resolve the claims against them.  
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The Defendants also agreed to create and effectuate a Corrective Action Plan for Dr. Luketich, and to submit to a year-long, third-party 
audit of Dr. Luketich’s physician fee services billings to Medicare. Pursuant to the Settlement Agreement, UPMC, in turn, has the ability 
to request information, guidance, assurance and/or an advisory opinion from the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services of the 
Department of Health and Human Services regarding certain Medicare regulations pertaining to the types of surgeries at issue in the 
case. 

The United States’ lawsuit was filed under the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. 3729, et seq., and was based on a two-year investigation 
into allegations originally brought by Jonathan D’Cunha, M.D., a former UPMC surgeon. In its Complaint, the United States alleged 
that Dr. Luketich – the longtime chair of UPMC’s Department of Cardiothoracic Surgery – regularly performed as many as three, 
complex surgical procedures at the same time, failed to participate in all of the “key and critical” portions of his surgeries, and forced 
his patients to endure hours of medically unnecessary anesthesia time, as he moved between operating rooms and attended to other 
patients or matters. According to the United States’ Complaint, those practices amounted to violations of the statutes and regulations 
which prohibit “teaching physicians” (like Dr. Luketich) from billing the United States for “concurrent surgeries,” were well known to 
UPMC leadership, and increased the risk of surgical complications to patients. 

The False Claims Act is one of the most powerful tools in the United States’ continued efforts to combat health care fraud. The Act’s 
whistleblower (or “qui tam”) provisions authorize private parties to sue on behalf of the United States for false claims and share in any 
recovery and permit the United States to intervene and take over the lawsuit, either in its entirety, or in part (as it did here).  

The case is captioned United States of America ex rel. Jonathan D’Cunha, M.D. v. James Luketich. et al., No. 19-cv-495 (W.D. Pa) 

James L. Luketich, M.D., University of Pittsburgh Medical Center (“UPMC”), and University of Pittsburgh Physicians (“UPP”), to 
resolve the lawsuit the United States filed against those Defendants in September 2021. 

Landlord and Former Operators of Upstate New York Nursing Home Pay U. S. $7,168,000  
Saratoga Center for Rehabilitation and Skilled Nursing Care (Saratoga Center), a nursing facility in Ballston Spa, New York. Leon 
Melohn; Alan “Ari” Schwartz; Jeffrey Vegh; Jack Jaffa; 149 Ballston Ave., LLC; Ballston Two, LLC; Saratoga Center for 
Care, LLC; and Saratoga Care and Rehabilitation Center, LLC (the Settling Parties) collectively agreed to pay $7,168,000 to resolve 
allegations that they violated the False Claims Act by causing the submission of false claims to the Medicaid program for worthless 
services provided to residents. Saratoga Center closed in February 2021, after this investigation was initiated. 

Before issuing a license to operate a nursing home, the New York State Department of Health (NYSDOH) thoroughly reviews, among 
other things, an applicant’s character and competence to ensure that the operator will provide a consistently high level of care to residents. 
After a months-long vetting process, in 2014, NYSDOH approved Schwartz and Vegh to operate Saratoga Center with Leon Melohn, 
through entities he managed and controlled, acting as its landlord (Melohn and his entities are hereinafter referred to as the Landlord). 
This license vested in Schwartz and Vegh the nondelegable duty to oversee the operations of the home. But in or around early 2017, due 
to a financial dispute, the Landlord required the legally licensed operators to surrender control of Saratoga Center. The Landlord replaced 
them with Jaffa and a business associate of his, along with various corporate entities, even though none of them had – and they never 
obtained – the necessary license from the NYSDOH. Jaffa and his associate undertook all the nondelegable duties that remained the 
responsibility of Schwartz and Vegh. 

These unlicensed individuals operated Saratoga Center from February 2017 until it closed in February 2021. During that period, the 
United States contends that Saratoga Center delivered worthless services to residents, and its physical conditions deteriorated to such a 
degree that it violated federal and state regulations. Specifically, the operators failed to adequately staff the home, and residents suffered 
medication errors, unnecessary falls, and the development of pressure ulcers. Additionally, Saratoga Center did not consistently maintain 
hot water throughout the facility, have an adequate linen inventory, and dispose of solid waste. In 2019, Saratoga Center was placed on 
the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services Special Focus Facility list – a list of the worst-performing nursing homes in the United 
States. Saratoga Center remained on the list until its closure. 

The United States contended that, between February 2017 and February 2021, the Settling Parties knowingly submitted or caused the 
submission of false claims for payment to Medicaid for worthless nursing services. This settlement resolves those allegations. 

In connection with the settlement, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Inspector General (HHS OIG), 
negotiated voluntary exclusions of the individuals and entities. Schwartz; Saratoga Center for Care, LLC; 149 Ballston Ave, LLC; and 
Ballston Two, LLC will be excluded from Medicare, Medicaid, and all other Federal health care programs, as defined in 42 U.S.C. § 
1320a-7b(f), for a period of ten years. Vegh will be excluded for eleven years. Jaffa and Saratoga Care and Rehabilitation Center, LLC, 
will be excluded for twenty years. 

ZIFL can only wonder why none of these people went to jail. 

Pain Management Doctor Sentenced to 3 Years for Slip-and-Fall Scheme 

Sady Ribeiro, 72, was sentenced to 36 months in prison for his participation in a scheme to obtain fraudulent insurance reimbursements 
and other compensation from fraudulent trip-and-fall accidents, by U.S. District Judge Sidney H. Stein. During the course of the fraud 
scheme, Ribeiro and others attempted to defraud their victims of more than $31 million. 
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Riberio, a New York-licensed pain management was also sentenced to three years of supervised release. 

Ribeiro pleaded guilty last October before Judge Stein. Four other co-conspirators also previously pleaded guilty for their involvement 
in the same scheme, and three were convicted at trial in May 2019 for their participation in the same trip-and-fall fraud scheme and 
sentenced in May 2020. 

According to the indictment, the scheme involved defrauding businesses and insurance companies by staging trip-and-fall accidents and 
filing fraudulent lawsuits arising from those staged trip-and-fall accidents. 

The fraud scheme participants recruited individuals to stage or falsely claim to have suffered trip-and-fall accidents at particular locations 
throughout New York City in such places as cellar doors, cracks in concrete sidewalks, and purported “potholes. In the course of the 
fraud scheme, scheme participants recruited more than 400 “patients,” many of whom were poor, homeless, drug addicted or otherwise 
vulnerable. 

After the staged trip-and-fall accidents, patients were referred to specific attorneys who would file personal injury lawsuits against the 
owners of the accident sites and/or insurance companies. 

The patients were also instructed to receive ongoing chiropractic and medical treatment from certain chiropractors and doctors, including 
Ribeiro. To continue with their lawsuits, the patients were required to undergo surgery, for which they were offered a payment typically 
between $1,000 and $1,500. Patients generally were told to undergo two surgeries, regardless of their legitimate medical needs.  

Ribeiro performed medical procedures on more than 200 patients. To maximize his patient base, Ribeiro paid participants cash kickbacks 
in exchange for patient referrals, according to prosecutors. 

San Miguel Woman Convicted of Felony Hit and Run, Insurance Fraud 
Melissa Roseanne Brewer, a San Miguel woman was convicted of hit and run, reckless driving, and insurance 
fraud for a crash involving a motorcyclist. The crash happened on March 23, 2021, on southbound Highway 101 
near Avila Beach Drive. 

According to the San Luis Obispo County District Attorney’s Office, Brewer was driving recklessly when she struck 
a motorcyclist who was merging onto the highway. While other drivers stopped to help the motorcyclist, Brewer 
sped away. 

A few days after the crash, Brewer reportedly filed a report with her insurance company claiming that she had driven 
off the road and into a guardrail. She later claimed to be receiving medical attention related to the collision. 

The California Highway Patrol was able to identify the car involved in the crash as a Hyundai Veloster and located it at a repair shop. 
Investigators determined the damage to the vehicle was caused by a collision with the motorcycle and not by a guardrail as Brewer 
claimed. 

Brewer was determined to be the driver of the Veloster based on vehicle records, cell phone data, eyewitness information, and her 
insurance claims. Brewer is scheduled to be sentenced on April 14. She faces a maximum of six years and eight months. 

Louisiana Resident Sentenced for Conspiring to Stage Auto Accidents 
Marvel Francois, a 54-year old of Houma, Louisiana, was sentenced for Conspiracy to Commit Mail Fraud, in violation of Title 18, 
United States Code, Section 371, arising out of staged automobile accidents with tractor-trailers occurring in New Orleans. 

According to court documents, on May 17, 2020, Francois, along with participants Damian Labeaud (“Labeaud”), Bernell Gale 
(“Gale”), Troy Smith (“Smith”), and another passenger, participated in a staged accident in the vicinity of Louisa Street and Chickasaw 
Street. Labeaud fled the scene.  

Francois falsely reported to the NOPD that she had been driving her Dodge Durango and that a tractor-trailer had struck her vehicle. 
Gale and Smith were previously sentenced before U.S. District Judge Lance M. Africk. Damian Labeaud’s sentencing is set for June 8, 
2023, before U.S. District Judge Eldon E. Fallon. 

United States District Judge Lance M. Africk sentenced Francois to 5 years’ probation, 100 hours of community service, payment of 
restitution in the amount of $20,654.48, and a mandatory $100.00 special assessment fee. 

Florida Agent Sentence to 14 Years in Prison 
John M. Thomas, 52, the former owner of Thomas Insurance Agency in Pensacola, Florida was sentenced to 14 years in prison and 
also must pay more than $8 million in restitution. 

More than 18 months after he pleaded guilty to absconding with almost $5 million in premiums, a Florida insurance agent is on his way 
to prison. 

For more than seven years, Thomas collected premium payments from at least 67 clients, then produced fraudulent policy documents 
and certificates purporting to show that clients were covered. Thomas used the money for personal gain, including an African safari, a 
Utah ski resort condominium, a Florida beach condo, a Lexus automobile and restorations to a 45-year-old Jeep vehicle, according to 
his 2021indictment. 

The independent agency sold homeowners, commercial property, commercial liability, auto, workers’ compensation and other lines of 
insurance to some well-known commercial interests in Florida and Alabama before the fraud was discovered. By failing to secure actual 
insurance policies, some clients lost more than $2 million in unpaid hurricane, fire and liability claims. 
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After the allegations came to light in 2021, more than 15 former clients filed complaints or lawsuits against Thomas. One suit explained 
that questions also arose when a major apartment complex in Mobile, Alabama, was damaged in a fire in May 2020. The Texas-based 
owners contacted the insurance carrier, only to be told that Thomas had never taken out a policy on the apartments. 

Thomas said there was a “mix-up” and paid $500,000 from a personal account as a downpayment on the claim, Rettig said. A second 
check from Thomas’ bank account bounced, and that’s when the property owners decided to take legal action. In another suit, a New 
York couple that owned a home near the beach charged that their house sustained wind and flood damage in the storm. Thomas told 
them he had filed the wind claim and promised to send the couple the documentation and policy. He never did. 

Thomas was arrested then unexpectedly pleaded guilty to the criminal charges in August of 2021. His sentencing was set for later that 
year. Prosecutors did not say why the sentencing had to wait for another 18 months, but court records suggest that Thomas’ pro se filings 
with the court may have delayed the proceedings. In August 2022, while incarcerated, he hand-wrote a motion asking to terminate his 
attorney from the case.  

Maryland Defense Contractor Convicted for Procurement Fraud after Nine-Day Trial 
Misrepresented to the U.S. Departments of Defense and Labor the Condition of the Equipment and Provided Fraudulent 
Documentation Concerning His Company’s Certifications 
Cory Collin Fitzgerald Sanders, age 39, of Hagerstown, Maryland was convicted by a federal jury March 7, 2023 on federal charges 
of wire fraud, false claims, and making and using a false document in connection with his companies’ performance on federal contracts.   

According to the evidence presented at the nine-day trial, in June 2014 Sanders formed Sandtech LLC, a Maryland limited liability 
company whose business was the sale of video teleconference equipment to the Department of Defense and other agencies of the federal 
government. Sanders was the sole owner, agent, and president of Sandtech. Witnesses testified that Sanders obtained contracts with 
federal agencies for Sandtech to provide telecommunications equipment and services. Sanders caused Sandtech to fail to perform on 
contracts with the U.S. Department of Labor and the Department of the Army, which terminated the Sandtech contracts for cause. 
Sanders then formed Cycorp Technologies in 2016 to provide the same type of telecommunication services as Sandtech. 

The trial evidence proved that from February 10, 2015 through June 30, 2020, Sanders engaged in a scheme to defraud the government 
by entering into contracts with federal agencies which required Sandtech or Cycorp Technologies to provide new telecommunications 
equipment which was still under manufacturers’ warranty. The evidence showed that in his communications with federal agency 
contracting officers Sanders provided false information about the delivery, source, warranty, and/or condition of the electronic 
equipment provided by his companies, including misrepresentations that the equipment was new and protected by the manufacturer’s 
warranty, when Sanders knew that the equipment was not new, or was new but not under warranty, or was procured through unauthorized 
channels. The evidence also showed that Sanders was not authorized to provide certain IT services to the federal government, although 
he represented to government officials that he was. 

Further, Sanders provided contracting officials with false information and false documents about the credentials, certifications, and 
qualifications of Cycorp Technologies. As proven during the trial, Sanders provided fabricated and forged documents falsely certifying 
Cycorp Technologies’ status as an “authorized partner” of two large national telecommunications equipment manufacturers. If true, the 
certificates would have authorized Cycorp Technologies to buy directly from those companies’ distributors, provide maintenance to 
their equipment, or re-sell their new and warrantied products. In addition, Sanders submitted invoices on behalf of Sandtech and Cycorp 
Technologies so that the government agencies he contracted with would pay for deficient or non-existent performance by electronic 
deposit into business bank accounts. 

Sanders faces a maximum sentence of 20 years in federal prison for each of 12 counts of wire fraud; a maximum of five years in federal 
prison for each of two counts of false claims; and a maximum of five years in federal prison for making and using a false document. 
Chief U.S. District Judge James K. Bredar has scheduled sentencing for Sanders on July 14, 2023, at 10:00 a.m. 

Guilty of Scheme Using Stolen IDs to Buy Vehicles 
Alvin Rivera, 39, of Haverhill, MA faces more than 20 years in prison at sentencing on June 15, 2023. 

Rivera, a Massachusetts man described by authorities as the ringleader of a group that used stolen identities to buy multiple vehicles 
worth a total of more than $1.5 million, pleaded guilty to fraud and identity theft charges. 

Rivera provided stolen identities to his alleged accomplices, who between October 2017 and September 2020, visited Massachusetts car 
dealerships to purchase late-model vehicles and apply for 100% financing. 

They used stolen personal information, fraudulent Puerto Rico driver’s licenses and Social Security cards as proof of identification 
during those transactions, according to court documents. Many of the fraudulently purchased vehicles were exported out of the U.S. 

Rivera’s alleged accomplices also used the stolen identities to open bank accounts and apply for credit cards. Rivera personally used 
stolen identities to apply for credit and fraudulently purchase vehicles in a similar scheme in New Jersey between October 2017 and 
February 2018, prosecutors said. 

He pleaded guilty Monday to wire fraud, wire fraud, aggravated identity theft and false representation of a Social Security number. 

Jury Convicts United Kingdom Woman of Insurance Scam Caravan Arson 
Catherine McCreadie, 59, was convicted of setting fire to her caravan (English for trailer or RV) in an attempt to fraudulently claim a 
£20,000 insurance pay-out.  
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At Carlisle Crown Court, McCreadie had denied three allegations that were linked to the fire at the Inglenook Caravan Park in Lamplugh 
on September 14, 2021, but she was convicted after a trial.  

The jury convicted her of arson, being reckless of whether life was endangered; making a false representation on October 5, 2020, when 
she attempted to make a false claim through her insurance; and committing an act with intent to pervert the course of justice – by lying 
to the police about the fire.  

During the trial, Inglenook’s warden Christine Spires said she was woken up at around 4am on September 14, 2020 by another resident 
banging on her door to tell her that McCreadie’s caravan was on fire.  Mrs. Spires woke her husband Richard, the site’s groundsman, 
who moved gas canisters that were near to the burning caravan. “I was absolutely terrified that these bottles are going to go up,” Mrs. 
Spires told the jury.  

Prosecutor Tim Evans said that if the fire had spread to those gas canisters, the effect could have been “catastrophic”.  

The court heard that all of the fire extinguishers on the site, as well as some from a neighbouring caravan park, were used by people 
staying on the site to contain the fire before firefighters arrived and put it out.  

A Cumbria Fire and Rescue Service investigator said the evidence led him to believe that the fire was deliberately started.  

Mr. Evans said that McCreadie was in debt “both generally in her life and at the caravan park”, and she had been served an eviction 
notice from Inglenook. “She was in real financial difficulties,” he said.  

In her evidence, McCreadie denied telling a woman at the caravan park that she would burn down the caravan. Asked how a lamp in the 
caravan had come into contact with newspapers, McCreadie, who said the caravan was left unlocked, replied: “Someone must have got 
in there and knocked it over.”  

Mr. Evans asked the defendant about an alleged conversation in which a woman at the site recalled the defendant saying: “The only way 
it’s going off is if it [the caravan] is burned down.”  

McCreadie said the woman had lied. The defendant, who was granted bail, will be sentenced on April 6 at the crown court.  

For Subscribers Only I Have Published Special Insurance Videos 
I published on Locals.com more than 25 videos and two webinars of the Excellence in Claims Handling program. I also published on 
Substack.com videos and webinars of the Excellence in Claims Handling Program available only to Subscribers. The subscribers have 
access to all the videos and a webinar on “The Examination Under Oath A Tool Available to Insurers to Thoroughly Investigate Claims 
and Work to Defeat Fraud” among others.  

The videos start with the history of insurance and work their way through various types of insurance and how to obtain and deal with 
insurance claims. 

Subscribe and receive videos limited to subscribers of Excellence in Claims Handling at locals.com 
https://zalmaoninsurance.locals.com/subscribe. 

Subscribe to my publications at substack at substack.com/refer/barryzalma 

Go to substack at substack.com/refer/barryzalma 

Barry Zalma, Esq., CFE, now limits his practice to service as an insurance consultant specializing in insurance 
coverage, insurance claims handling, insurance bad faith and insurance fraud almost equally for insurers and 
policyholders. He also serves as an arbitrator or mediator for insurance related disputes. He practiced law in 
California for more than 44 years as an insurance coverage and claims handling lawyer and more than 54 years 
in the insurance business. He is available at http://www.zalma.com and zalma@zalma.com 

Over the last 54 years Barry Zalma has dedicated his life to insurance, insurance claims and the need to defeat 
insurance fraud. He has created the following library of books and other materials to make it possible for 
insurers and their claims staff to become insurance claims professionals. 
Barry Zalma, Inc., 4441 Sepulveda Boulevard, CULVER CITY CA 90230-4847, 310-390-4455; Subscribe to Zalma on 
Insurance at locals.com https://zalmaoninsurance.local.com/subscribe. Subscribe to Excellence in Claims Handling at 
https://barryzalma.substack.com/welcome. Write to Mr. Zalma at zalma@zalma.com; http://www.zalma.com; http://zalma.com/blog; I publish daily 
articles at https://zalma.substack.com, Go to the podcast Zalma On Insurance at https://anchor.fm/barry-zalma; Follow Mr. Zalma on Twitter at 
https://twitter.com/bzalma; Go to Barry Zalma videos at Rumble.com at https://rumble.com/c/c-262921; Go to the Insurance Claims Library – 
https://zalma.com/blog/insurance-claims-library/ to consider more than 50 volumes written by Barry Zalma on insurance and insurance claims handling. 

 


